
SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN BOROUGH COUNCIL

Thursday, 4 October 2018 at 6.00 pm

Civic Suite

HS2 Implementation Advisory 
Group 

Public Document Pack



Disclosing Pecuniary Interests - What Must You Do?

 (a) You must complete a declaration of your disclosable pecuniary interests, including those of 
your spouse/civil partner (or someone with whom you are living as such) and send it to the 
Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your election or appointment to the Council.

(b) When you attend a meeting of the Council, Cabinet, Scrutiny Board, Committee, Sub-
Committee or Joint Committee etc, and a matter arises in which you have a disclosable pecuniary 
interest, unless you have been granted a dispensation, you must:

 Declare the interest if you have not already registered it

 Not participate in any discussion or vote

 Leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with

 Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of 
the meeting

(c) If you are the Leader or a Cabinet Portfolio Holder you may not exercise any of your 
delegated powers as a single member in relation to a matter in which you have a disclosable 
pecuniary interest or take any other step except to give written notice of any unregistered interest 
to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of your becoming aware of the interest, or arrange for 
another person or body to deal with the matter.

Disclosable Interest Description

Employment, office, 
trade, profession or
vocation

Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain by you 
or your partner.

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit (other than from the Council) 
made or provided within 12 months of your declaration of interests in respect of any 
expenses incurred by you in carrying out duties as a member, or towards your election 
expenses.

Contracts Any contract between you or your partner (or a firm or body corporate in which you or 
your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities of which you or your partner 
has a beneficial interest)) and the Council 
(a) under which goods or services are to be provided or works are to be executed; and
(b) which has not been fully discharged.

Land Any beneficial interest in land which is within the area of the Council and which gives you 
or your partner a right to occupy the land or receive income.

Licences Any licence held by you or your partner (alone or jointly with others) to occupy land in the 
area of the Council for a month or longer.

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge)—
(a) the landlord is the Council; and
(b) the tenant is a body in which you or your partner has a beneficial interest i.e. a firm or 
body corporate in which you or your partner is a partner or a director, or in the securities 
of which you or your partner has a beneficial interest.

Securities Any beneficial interest held by you or your partner in securities of a body where—

(a) that body (to your knowledge) has a place of business or land in the area of the 
Council; and
(b) either—

(i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one hundredth of 
the total issued share capital of that body; or

(ii) if the share capital of that body is of more than one class, the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class in which you or your partner has a 
beneficial interest exceeds one hundredth of the total issued share capital of that 
class.

“securities” means shares, debentures, debenture stock, loan stock, bonds, units of a 
collective investment scheme within the meaning of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any description, other than money deposited with a 
building society.



SOLIHULL METROPOLITAN 
BOROUGH COUNCIL

To:
Councillors A Rolf (Chairman), D Bell, 
T Dicicco, B Holmes, K Macnaughton and 
T Richards OBE

NICK PAGE
CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Council House, Manor Square
Solihull, West Midlands. B91 3QB
Tel. 0121-704 6000 

Joseph Bright
Tel: 0121 704 6055
Email: jbright@solihull.gov.uk

Date 27 September 2018

HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - Thursday, 4 October 2018

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

To receive notification of any declaration of pecuniary and/or conflict of interest 
from Members.

3. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS 

To answer questions, if any, asked by any resident of the Borough pursuant to 
Standing Orders.

4. MINUTES (Pages 5 - 12)

To receive the minutes of the previous meeting.

5. PROPOSED HS2 INTERCHANGE IMAGES 

Advisory Group to receive a presentation from HS2 Ltd on the proposed 
Interchange Images.

6. HIGHWAY SERVICES UPDATE (Pages 13 - 20)

To provide an update on the High Speed Rail 2 (HS2) project from the Council’s 
Highway Services Division.

7. PROGRAMME UPDATE FROM HS2 LTD 



Advisory Group to receive an update from the Senior Engagement Manager, 
HS2 Ltd.



HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 19 July 2018

MINUTES

Present: Councillors: A Rolf (Chairman), D Bell, B Holmes and 
K Macnaughton, Dame C Spelman MP.

Councillor I Courts, Cabinet Member for Managed Growth

Officers:

Representatives:

James Carpenter – Head of Planning Design and Engagement
Joseph Bright – Democratic Services Officer

Jonathan Lord – Senior Engagement Manager, HS2 Ltd
Andy de Bell – Community Engagement Manager, Balfour Beatty 
Vinci (BBV)

Apologies: Councillors: T Dicicco and T Richards OBE

1. APPOINTMENT OF CHAIRMAN 

Nominations were sought for the election of Chairman for 2018/19.

RESOLVED
That Councillor A Rolf be elected Chairman of the HS2 Implementation 
Advisory Group for the Municipal Year 2018/19.

2. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN 

Nominations were sought for the appointment of Vice-Chairman for 2018/19.

RESOLVED
That Councillor T Richards OBE be appointed Vice-Chairman of the HS2 
Implementation Advisory Group for the Municipal Year 2018/19.

3. APOLOGIES 

Councillors T Dicicco and T Richards OBE submitted their apologies.

4. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were no declarations of interest.

5. QUESTIONS AND DEPUTATIONS 

Requests to address the Advisory Group were submitted by Vicky Woodall, 
Hampton-in-Arden Parish Council, Richard Lloyd, Heart of England High Speed 
Railway Action Group and Sheila Cooper, local resident.

Vicky Woodall requested an update on the Bickenhill Waste Recycling Centre. 
The Community Engagement Manager, Balfour Beatty Vince, responded, 

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 19 July 2018

detailing how they were continuing to develop the design to minimise impact on 
the centre. He confirmed it should be possible to provide a further update on 
the future of the site at the next meeting.

Richard Lloyd addressed the Advisory Group, where the points raised included 
the following:

 Engagement issues – Richard Lloyd expressed concern about 
engagement issues as the HS2 Bill had gone through Parliament. It was 
also highlighted that, during this stage a significant volume of Council 
key asks had been identified – Richard Lloyd queried what had 
happened to the outstanding actions.

 Haul routes – Richard Lloyd explained he believed routes through 
villages were unacceptable. He also flagged up that a potential scheme 
from Berkswell Parish Council had been submitted to the Advisory 
Group 12 months ago, but no response had been received.

 Chelmsley Wood public space – Richard Lloyd expressed concern at the 
loss of green space and noise impact in this area, in particular at Heath 
Park.

 Archaeology – it was highlighted there was no procedure in place for 
protecting unrecognised assets during the preparatory and construction 
phases of HS2.

 Environmental – in respect of air quality, no baseline measurements had 
been identified. No detailed information on potential noise mitigation 
options had been provided yet.

 Ecology – concerns were expressed in regards to habitat and wildlife 
loss, as well as the severance of migration routes. Richard Lloyd also 
flagged up his opinion that assurances were provided that local Tree 
Wardens would be consulted on plantings.

 Structure design – no consultations had been held yet with local 
residents in regards to potential design options.

Jonathan Lord, Senior Engagement Manager, HS2 Ltd, emphasised he 
recognised Richard Lloyd’s concerns. He explained that HS2 Ltd since Royal 
Assent had been working on the procurement of contracts to design and 
construct the line. This was a lengthy and detailed process which has not yet 
reached conclusion. Further information should be available by the end of the 
year.

Jonathan Lord highlighted that an update on haul routes had been identified as 
part of the presentation from BBV. In regards to loss of green space at 
Chelmsley Wood, he detailed how they were working with the Council to 
identify options to help mitigate against this.

In regards to the points made in respect of archaeology and the engagement of 
local Tree Wardens, Jonathan Lord confirmed he would investigate these and 
provide a written response.

Jonathan Lord noted the points raised in regards to environment, ecology, air 
quality and noise. He highlighted how the anticipated environmental impact of 

Page 6



HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 19 July 2018

HS2 had been identified as part of the Environmental Statement and this 
provided a guide. It was agreed for an update on ecological issues to be 
scheduled for the next meeting

In regards to structure design, Jonathan Lord flagged up the HS2 Engagement 
Strategy he had previously updated the Advisory Group on. He detailed how 
this set out HS2 Ltd’s commitment to involve local representatives and create 
opportunities for them to input their views during the design phase of the 
project.

Shelia Cooper also made a deputation, where she highlighted the HS2 Ltd 
publication ‘More than a railway – HS2 and the natural environment.’ She 
expressed concern at the assertions made in this document, as well as the 
conceptual representations of the railway line.

Shelia Cooper stated that the development of HS2 would have a destructive 
impact upon biodiversity and the natural environment. She also emphasised 
that, in her view, it would result in the loss of a significant volume of wildlife 
habitats along the whole route, as well as ancient woodlands. Sheila Cooper 
detailed how she believed that replacement tree planting and transplanting 
ancient woodland soils would be ineffective. She also raised the issue of air 
quality and requested for effective data collection and monitoring to be 
undertaken along the route as soon as possible.

Dame Spelman noted the points Sheila Cooper made and emphasised she 
recognised the development of HS2 would result in losses of biodiversity. She 
flagged up that any biodiversity and environmental offsetting wouldn’t 
necessarily happen within exactly the same location, instead it would be 
undertaken across the whole HS2 route overall.

Dame Spelman highlighted a conference she had recently attended at 
Birmingham University, which set out ambitious plans to establish a West 
Midlands National Park. She also detailed how HS2 could offer opportunities to 
develop and enhance existing green spaces, such as the Tame Valley 
Wetlands and Blythe River Valley.

Dame Spelman also highlighted how there were a number of nature 
improvement areas within the West Midlands – she noted that environmental 
offsetting from HS2 could include making these areas more accessible to local 
residents. As an example, she flagged up how the Chelmsley Wood community 
was currently cut-off from a significant adjacent area of green space. 

The following questions were submitted by Andrew Burrow, of the Berkswell 
Society. It was agreed for these questions to be recorded as part of the 
minutes, with the following responses provided by the Council:

I am Secretary of the Berkswell Society. We worked closely with the SMBC 
HS2 Advisory Committee and Walter Bailey in the draft stages and petitioning 
stages of the HS2 project. By working together we achieved quite a lot for 
Berkswell. In particular: 

Page 7



HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 19 July 2018

1. Enhanced noise mitigation (through Society petition)
2. Pavements on the two new bridges at Lavender Hall Lane and Waste 

Lane (via SMBC)
3. An assurance that the trees on the greenway would not be clear cut and 

SMBC would be consulted on which trees would need to go for the 
construction phase (via SMBC)

4. SMBC would put a HGV ban on Old Waste Lane
5. The design of the viaduct/bridge would be subject to a special process to 

ensure as far as practical that it would suit the location and the local 
community would be consulted on that design (Berkswell was one of 
several locations on the line where this commitment (Assurance) was 
given.

I would like the opportunity to ask the Advisory Group for progress on items 3, 4 
and 5 of the above list at the meeting on 19th July

Council’s response, by the Group Manager for Transport and Infrastructure 
Commissioning:

‘In effect, there’s little progress made, primarily as we’re waiting to get a better 
understanding of HS2 Ltd.’s work programme and approach to construction.  
HS2 Ltd.’s contractors are required to take the Undertakings and Assurances 
(U&As) into account when developing their proposals and applying to SMBC for 
approval, and we’re yet to receive any such proposals.  We are, however, 
working with HS2 Ltd. to develop a process that ensures that all the U&As are 
being tracked and implemented.  We are also feeding into HS2 Ltd.’s design 
team to try to influence the design of viaducts such that local context is a key 
consideration when developing proposals; the aim being to ensure that an 
appropriate approach is taken towards design of infrastructure that will 
subsequently become the subject of public consultation / engagement.’

6. MINUTES 

The Advisory Group received the minutes of the meeting held on 15th March 
2018.

RESOLVED
That the minutes of the meeting held on 15th March 2018 be confirmed 
as a correct record.

7. HS2 LTD UPDATE 

Jonathan Lord, Senior Engagement Manager, HS2 Ltd, provided an update 
upon the proposed works to be undertaken over the next 6-8 months. He 
initially focused on the Balsall Common, Berkswell and Hampton in Arden 
areas, detailing the archaeological surveys and ecological mitigation works 
proposed to be undertaken. Jonathan Lord also explained the work to be 
completed as part of the construction of a compound in Balsall Common.
He also explained the on-going area wide wildlife translocation and ecological 
surveys that were being completed.

Page 8



HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 19 July 2018

Jonathan Lord also provided an update in respect of the Interchange Triangle, 
Birmingham Business Park and Bickenhill. He explained the engineering 
surveys, vegetation clearance and ground investigation works proposed to be 
undertaken. In addition, he detailed the works to be completed to construct a 
compound in the BIS Triangle.

Jonathan Lord emphasised they recognised the scale of the works in this area 
and noted the engagement activities that were proposed to be undertaken. He 
highlighted the drop in session that was scheduled to be held in Chelmsley 
Wood.

Dame Spelman highlighted the high voltage works that were scheduled to be 
undertaken in Heath Park. She requested for these works not to be undertaken 
during the summer holidays, so as not to restrict the range of activities children 
and young people could pursue during this time. Jonathan Lord confirmed he 
would flag this up with the relevant officers.

Andy de Bell, Community Engagement Manager, BBV, also provided an 
update, detailing the HS2 programme. It was noted there had been a slight 
extension in the design stage – however, it was emphasised this should not 
impact upon delivery, as it was anticipated more detailed preparatory works 
would be undertaken. Andy de Bell also provided an update on the ground 
investigation and surveys works being completed.

Andy de Bell informed Members of the work be undertaken to develop potential 
haulage and delivery routes. He detailed how one potential route being 
considered included the use of Hall Meadow Road. It was noted this should 
allow the establishment of a link from the roundabout to run behind the local 
garage and British Legion, as well as the development of car parking. Andy de 
Bell highlighted that a potential impact of using this route would be minimising 
the use of Waste Lane and Truggist Lane.

Members and local representatives noted the potential haulage and delivery 
routes. A number of observations were made, including the following:

 It was highlighted the area referred to could be subject to flooding and 
poor drainage.

 The issue of car parking at the Health Centre and Berkswell Station was 
highlighted. Members emphasised cars already parked along Station 
Road and Hall Meadow Road when there were insufficient spaces at the 
Station – they queried whether this would impact upon the viability of 
HGV lorries using the route.

 Members flagged up that the A452 was already heavily congested on a 
regular basis – they stressed the importance of establishing routes that 
allowed reasonably free movement of vehicles, to not exacerbate air 
quality levels.

Andy de Bell confirmed it was recognised engineering works were required to 
make the area a viable site for construction traffic. He also emphasised the 

Page 9



HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 19 July 2018

potential haul route allowed off-road vehicle movements and the development 
of car parking. It was noted that these works would fall outside the constraints 
set out in the Environmental Statement and Act. Andy de Bell also confirmed he 
would feed back the comments raised by Members and local representatives to 
the relevant officers.

Andy de Bell also highlighted the engagement planning being undertaken for 
the key design element of HS2. He detailed how public engagements were 
being planned for the Blythe Valley Viaduct and Balsall Common Viaduct prior 
to application during 2019.

8. ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES STEMMING FROM HS2 

Councillor Courts, Cabinet Member for Managed Growth, attended to provide 
an update on the Council’s activities to maximise the economic opportunities 
stemming from HS2.

Councillor Courts explained the role of UK Central, detailing how it was a 
vehicle created specifically to raise the profile of Solihull and realise the full 
economic potential of the HS2 Interchange Station and surrounding transport 
and business infrastructure. 

As part of his presentation, Councillor Courts raised the following points:

Connectivity – Councillor Courts explained how UK Central had focused upon 
ensuring effective transport connectivity, encompassing the two railways, the 
M42 gateway, as well as the airport. He also highlighted the East Birmingham 
to Solihull metro extension. It was emphasised this should all enable greater 
access to employment opportunities, especially in the North of the Borough, 
which had previously suffered from poor connectivity. Councillor Courts also 
highlighted the work being undertaken across the Borough to develop cycle 
networks, as well as establish electric vehicle networks – it was noted how this 
was linked with work being undertaken by the Combined Authority.

Skills – Councillor Courts flagged up how HS2 Ltd had decided to base the 
national construction headquarters in Birmingham. It was also noted how the 
city would also co-host the National College for High Speed Rail. Councillor 
Courts emphasised how it was a priority for the Combined Authority to step-up 
the local skills base, engaging HS2 Ltd and the supply chain, to ensure local 
residents could access employment and training opportunities as much as 
possible. 

Attracting businesses – it was emphasised how business were already being 
attracted to the area, as it was recognised HS2 would provide extra connectivity 
and drive economic activity. Councillor Courts also detailed how UK Central 
was working with HS2 Ltd to ensure economic benefits for local Small and 
Medium Enterprises, including through supply chain opportunities.

Housing opportunities and place making – Councillor Courts detailed how the 
development of HS2 provided opportunities to secure high quality local 

Page 10



HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 19 July 2018

housing. He also emphasised the importance of effective place making and 
quality design, to ensure the best possible local environment for people to live 
and work.

Members noted the intention to improve the local skills base, to ensure local 
people could pursue employment and training opportunities stemming from 
HS2. They queried whether minimum quotas had been established for this, to 
ensure the employment of local residents. 

Jonathan Lord, Senior Engagement Manager, HS2 Ltd, confirmed it was a 
requirement for HS2 and it’s contractors to ensure a certain volume of local 
residents were engaged in employment and apprenticeship opportunities. Andy 
de Bell, BBV, confirmed he could arrange for the relevant Officer to attend a 
future meeting, to provide a detailed update on employment opportunities.

Dame Spelman highlighted how similar employment targets had been set in the 
past in regards to other local projects; however, problems had been 
experienced, due to low attainment levels and a lack of available courses. She 
noted how Jaguar Land Rover had previously experienced similar problems 
when attempting to recruit local apprenticeships and commended the work they 
were now undertaking in partnership with Solihull College. Dame Spelman 
stressed the importance of going upstream, through engaging local Schools 
and Colleges at an early stage, ensuring relevant courses were available and 
enabling young people to gain the relevant skills. Members also noted the need 
to focus upon ways of encouraging more women to apply for roles in local 
major construction projects. 

Dame Spelman also emphasised the need to consider potential barriers young 
people from deprived areas might face when attempting to access any 
vacancies. It was noted they may not have access to IT to apply for roles 
online. Dame Spelman also flagged up they may not have access to private 
transport, limiting their ability to travel to construction sites situated in rural 
locations.

Dame Spelman also queried the potential of working in partnership with other 
local parallel construction projects – as an example, she flagged up how 
Birmingham Airport was upgrading its site, to ensure sufficient capacity for the 
Commonwealth Games.

Dame Spelman also raised the issue of the HS2 Ltd Community fund and 
expressed concern that no local groups had been successful so far in securing 
this funding for projects. It was noted groups within neighbouring Authorities 
had been successful in obtaining funding, including in Water Orton and Castle 
Vale. Dame Spelman explained how she had requested examples of 
successful projects and was informed it could include small scale works, such 
as the restoration of a Church roof. She stressed the need to engage local 
Parish Councils and Ward Councillors to raise awareness of how they could 
submit bids, as well as what they could bid for. Jonathan Lord confirmed he 
could request for Officers from Groundwork to attend a future meeting, to 
explain the application process. 

Page 11



HS2 IMPLEMENTATION ADVISORY GROUP - 19 July 2018

RESOLVED
The HS2 Implementation Advisory Group received the presentation on 
the economic opportunities.

8.30 pm

Page 12



Meeting date: 4th October 2018

Report to: High Speed Rail 2 - Implementation Group

Subject/report 
title:

Highway Services Update

Report from: Head of Highway Services

Report 
author/lead 
contact officer:

Paul Tovey

Wards affected: 
☒ All Wards | ☐ Bickenhill | ☐ Blythe | ☐ Castle Bromwich | ☐ Chelmsley Wood |
☐ Dorridge/Hockley Heath | ☐ Elmdon | ☐ Kingshurst/Fordbridge | ☐ Knowle |
☐ Lyndon | ☐ Meriden | ☐ Olton | ☐ Shirley East | ☐ Shirley South |
☐ Shirley West | ☐ Silhill | ☐ Smith’s Wood | ☐ St Alphege

Public/private 
report:

Public

Exempt by virtue 
of paragraph:

Select an Exemption paragraph from the ‘Quick Parts’ drop-down list

1. Purpose of Report

1.1 To provide an update on the High Speed Rail 2 (HS2) project from the Council’s 
Highway Services Division. 

2. Decision(s) recommended

2.1 Note the update on the individual elements of the HS2 project.

2.2 Agree to receive a further update at the next meeting of the HS2 Implementation 
Group in December 2018.

3. What is the issue?

3.1 The HS2 project has now progressed into the Scheme Design phase, and the HS2 
team are actively evaluating their “Value Engineering” options for the highway 
improvements necessary to accommodate this new national transport asset.

3.2 This report provides an update on various elements of the project, together with the 
latest position on the HS2 Road Safety Fund. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



4. What options have been considered and what is the evidence telling us about 
them?

4.1 The HS2 team are currently focusing their efforts, in Solihull, on the following parts of 
the highway network:

(a) Solihull Interchange Station road network. This work package is in three 
parts (Zones A, B and C) and include sections of the A452 Kenilworth Road, 
B4438 Bickenhill Parkway, Solihull Parkway access to Birmingham Business 
Park, Northway access to the N.E.C. and the A446 Chester Road (including 
Stonebridge Island), which forms part of Highways England’s Trunk Road 
network. (see Appendix A)

(b) A452 Kenilworth Road / Park Lane junction. The project proposes to 
construct a permanent roundabout at this junction as shown in Appendix B.

(c) A45 Coventry Road between Stonebridge and M42 Junction 6. This work 
package involves the main carriageway of the A45 Coventry Road, together 
with changes to the two parallel service roads.

4.2 The HS2 “Scheme Design” process involves fine tuning the layouts as detailed in the 
Act’s Environmental Statement; engaging stakeholders and developing the costs. This 
process also includes a review of the traffic modelling work which was undertaken 
during the Bill process, to ensure that it remains representative of the revised base 
year 2018, the proposed year of opening 2026 and it will look also ahead to see how 
the design will perform in 2041.

4.3 To support the scheme design process HS2 contractors are currently carrying out a 
wide range of Ground Investigation work and traffic surveys. The majority of this work 
has been carried out overnight or under short duration temporary road closures which 
have had minimal impact on the highway network. Officers from Highway Services are 
supporting the design process but are not directly involved in the internal HS2 
approval process. 

4.4 These 3 work packages will then progress to “Detailed Design”, at which stage a 
construction programme will be prepared. This process also includes stakeholder 
engagement which HS2 are required to lead on. The outcome will be included in the 
final submission for the council’s approval. Officers are also supporting the design of 
the following elements:

 Drainage strategies and designs,

 Design of Highway Structures,

 Horizontal and vertical alignment compliance with standards,

 Street Lighting provision,

 Traffic signal operations,

 Capacity modelling, and

Page 14



 Road Safety risk assessments.

4.5 When the detailed design process is complete, HS2 are required to submit their 
highway designs for approval by the Council. To ensure this process meets the 
statutory 28 day timeline the council recently approved the following approval process 
through its Officer Scheme of Delegated powers: 

 All temporary and minor interference applications submitted under Schedule 
4 parts 1, 2 and 3 of the Act will be considered and approved by the Head of 
Highway Services.

 All major schemes submitted under Schedule 4 Part 3 of the Act will be 
subject to the approval of the Council’s Cabinet Member for Transport and 
Highways. These meetings are held in public and will consider the various 
stakeholder views.

4.6 A tracker has been developed to help monitor progress on all Schedule 4 applications 
received and this information will be shared with the Transport and Highways Cabinet 
at future decision-making session and published on the Council’s website, for the 
duration of the project. (See Appendix C)

4.7 Having this approval process in place, will ensure the Council is able to respond to the 
high demand of minor and major applications expected to be submitted during the 5 
year construction programme.

4.8 At present, all 3 work packages are on the project’s critical path and work is currently 
expected to commence on site in Spring 2019, with completion expected by 2022. 
This major construction programme will require working closely with Highways 
England, West Midlands Police and key stakeholders in the area, such as the N.E.C., 
Birmingham Airport, JLR and Birmingham Business Park to ensure disruption to the 
travelling public is minimised.

4.9 These work packages also have planning implications, which will be considered 
through the approved Schedule 17 application process and for the Highways England 
Trunk road network and for the Environment Agency, who will both be required to 
consider and approve certain elements of these schemes.

4.10 Through the HS2 Service Level Agreement (SLA), an additional Highway Engineer 
has been appointed to help manage this process. The level of staff resource required 
by Highway Services to meet this increased demand is difficult to predict and will be 
kept under review. The SLA ensures that any reasonable additional cost incurred by 
the Council will be funded by HS2.

4.11 UK Central – Proposals – The Council’s Urban Growth Company is currently in 
discussion with HS2 in respect of developing a parallel scheme for the station site. 
This change will seek to promote additional employment and housing growth. Our 
highway officers are supporting this work which has been paused to enable the 
strategic modelling work to be reviewed. 

4.12 HS2 Road Safety Fund – The Group may recall that earlier this year the Council was 
awarded £2.435m from the Department for Transport to leave a legacy in terms of 

Page 15



Road Safety improvements following the opening of HS2 in 2026.

4.13 This project is also in its early stages and is collecting data from which to assess the 
sections of the highway network most likely to be impacted by the HS2 project. This 
work is considering traditional historic road traffic collision analysis; a look forward at 
potential safety issues based on the DfT’s approved iRAP safety assessment process 
and feedback from community groups.

4.14 The outcome from this phase of the project has been delayed and is not now 
expected to be complete in time to be reported to the Group’s next meeting in 
December. The next update from the project will therefore be at your meeting in 
March 2019. 

5. Reasons for recommending preferred option

5.1 The information contained in this report is for information only.

5.2 Officers would like to invite the Group to comment / ask questions relating to progress, 
process or future items that members may be interested to hear about at future 
meetings relating to the potential impact of HS2 on the highway network in Solihull. 

6. Implications and Considerations

6.1 Delivery of the Council Plan:

How will the options/proposals in this report contribute to the delivery of the Council 
Plan? 

The HS2 Project has strong links / outputs with all off the following Council priorities: 

☒ Improve Health and Wellbeing

☒ Managed Growth

☒ Build Stronger Communities

☒ Deliver Value

6.2 Implications for children and young people, vulnerable groups and particular 
communities:

6.2.1 None as a result of the purpose of this report. These important matters will be 
considered as and when the individual highway schemes come forward through the 
Act’s Schedule 4 Highway Improvement application process. 

6.3 Consultation and Scrutiny:

6.3.1 The HS2 Engagement team are leading on the consultation process are having 
regular meetings and events along the line of HS2 with stakeholders, community 
groups, businesses and where necessary individuals directly affected by HS2.

Page 16



6.3.2 Details of future engagement events and latest information on how the scheme is 
developing can be found on the HS2 website at:  https://www.gov.uk/transport/hs2 

6.4 Financial implications:

6.4.1 None as a result of the purpose of this report.

6.5 Legal implications:

6.5.1 The High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Act 2017 provides the necessary 
powers to enable this project to be constructed through Solihull.

6.6 Risk implications:

6.6.1 The risks for this project are being managed by HS2 Limited.

6.6.2 At this stage, there is a concern over programming of the works and its potential to 
overlap / conflict with other regional priorities such as the Common Wealth Games in 
2022. This situation will be closely monitored and escalated as and when necessary.

6.7 Statutory Equality Duty:

6.7.1 None as a result of the purpose of this report.

7.  List of appendices referred to

7.1 Appendix A – Birmingham Interchange Station Highway Layout

7.2 Appendix B – A452 Kenilworth Road / Park Lane junction

7.3 Appendix C – Schedule 4 applications tracker

8. Background papers used to compile this report

8.1 The High Speed Rail (London – West Midlands) Act 2017

9. List of other relevant documents

9.1 None

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/transport/hs2


Appendix A

Birmingham Interchange Station – Proposed Highway Layout

Note: Blue Routes – SMBC Local Authority Roads; Orange Route – Highways England Trunk Roads

Page 18



Appendix B

A452 Kenilworth Road / Park Lane, Balsall Common

Note: Proposed roundabout junction replaces existing rural minor priority T junction

Page 19



Appendix C

HS2 Schedule 4 Applications Tracker

Left Blank – A3 Tracker document to be circulated at the meeting.

Page 20


	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	6 Highway Services Update

